



← Back to Submissions

3302 / **Suwarni** / Study of Anemia, Hemoglobin Level, and Subjective Well-being among

[Library](#)

Workflow

Publication

Submission

Review

Copyediting

Production


Round 1

Round 1 Status

Submission accepted.

Reviewer's Attachments

[Q Search](#)


 13574 [Review. Study of Anemia, Hemoglobin Level, and Subjective Well-being among Women of Reproductive Age in Indonesia.docx](#)

November
22, 2023

Revisions

[Q Search](#)

[Upload File](#)

▶  13589 [3302-11511-13574-5-20231122 REVISED 23112023.docx](#)

November
23, 2023 Article Text

Review Discussions

[Add discussion](#)

Name	From	Last Reply	Replies	Closed

Name	From	Last Reply	Replies	Closed
▶ Revision	linds 2023-11-22 11:28 PM	-	0	<input type="checkbox"/>

Original Article

Study of Anemia, Hemoglobin Level, and Subjective Well-being among Women of Reproductive Age in Indonesia

ABSTRACT

Anemia is a burden for women of reproductive age (15 – 49 years old). The condition might be worse for women in periods of pregnancy, menstruation, and breastfeeding. Anemia is also can contribute to subjective well-being. This study aimed to examine the correlation between anemia status and hemoglobin level related to subjective well-being among women of reproductive age. This cross-sectional study used the Indonesia Family Life Survey (IFLS) wave 5 in 2014/15 with a total study sample were 12,818. This study examined univariate, bivariate (Chi-square and ANOVA), and multivariate (multinomial logistic regression) analysis using STATA version 17. The findings revealed that anemia and hemoglobin level did not have a correlation with subjective well-being, but some other covariates were found significantly associated including being married, pregnant, poor SES, family life satisfaction, standard of life, and food consumption. It is concluded that subjective well-being is associated with not only health aspects but also social and economic. Intervention in the level of community is needed to improve the quality of life to achieve satisfied well-being.

Keywords: Anemia, subjective well-being, IFLS 5, women of reproductive age

DOI:



© 2021 by the authors. Submitted for possible open access publication under the terms and conditions of the Creative Commons Attribution (CC BY SA) license (<https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/4.0/>).

INTRODUCTION

Anemia is a medical condition characterized by a deficiency of red blood cells or hemoglobin in the blood. It can have various impacts on an individual's well-being, including subjective well-being. Subjective well-being refers to an individual's self-perceived happiness, life satisfaction, and positive affect (1). Research has shown that anemia can have a negative impact on subjective well-being. A study conducted on pregnant women found that the severity of anemia had a significant effect on their quality of life, which encompasses physical, mental, and social well-being (2). Another study on elderly patients found that chronic anemia was highly associated with fatigue, which is a subjective sensation of weakness, lack of energy, and tiredness (3). Furthermore, socioeconomic status (SES) has been found to be linked to subjective well-being. Lower SES is often associated with reduced access to material and social resources, as well as higher levels of stress-inducing conditions. These factors can negatively impact child well-being and overall subjective well-being (4).

Anemia is a medical condition

characterized by a decrease in the number of red blood cells or a decrease in the amount of hemoglobin in the blood. It can have significant effects on an individual's health and well-being. One study conducted on pregnant women in Yogyakarta found that the severity of anemia had a significant effect on their quality of life, including their physical, mental, and social well-being (2). This suggests that anemia can have a negative impact on subjective well-being. Subjective well-being (SWB) refers to an individual's evaluation of their own well-being and life satisfaction (1). It encompasses both hedonic well-being, which refers to how people feel emotionally in their everyday lives, and evaluative well-being, which refers to how people evaluate their overall current and future lives (5). Research on SWB has made extensive advancements in the past few decades, and it has become the most widely used index of well-being (6).

In addition to anemia and SES, other factors such as health status can also influence subjective well-being. A study conducted in Russia found that characteristics such as poor health had a significant negative impact on subjective well-being (7). Moreover, the impacts of flooding and flood preparedness

Commented [H1]: The title is clear and accurately reflects the content of the study. It effectively communicates the key variables and the population under investigation.

Commented [H2]: The introduction appropriately highlights the significance of anemia among women of reproductive age and the potential impact on subjective well-being. It would be useful to include some statistics or prevalence rates to emphasize the importance of the issue in the Indonesian context.

Commented [H3]: The abstract mentions the use of the Indonesia Family Life Survey (IFLS) wave 5 in 2014/15 with a substantial sample size of 12,818. However, it lacks details on the specific measures used for subjective well-being, anemia assessment, and how hemoglobin levels were categorized. Providing this information would enhance the transparency and replicability of the study.

Commented [H4]: The abstract briefly mentions the statistical analyses performed, including univariate, bivariate (Chi-square and ANOVA), and multivariate (multinomial logistic regression) analyses. It would be helpful to provide a bit more detail on the specific variables included in the analyses and the rationale behind their selection.

Commented [H5]: The abstract reports that anemia and hemoglobin level did not correlate with subjective well-being, but several covariates, such as marital status, pregnancy, socioeconomic status, family life satisfaction, standard of life, and food consumption, were found to be significant. Providing a glimpse of the effect sizes or odds ratios in the abstract would give readers a better understanding of the practical significance of these findings.

Commented [H6]: The conclusion effectively summarizes the key findings and emphasizes the broader implications for subjective well-being. It would be beneficial to include a brief discussion of the limitations of the study and potential directions for future research.

Commented [H7]: The abstract provides a concise summary of the study, outlining its objectives, methods, key findings, and conclusions. It effectively communicates the significance of the research. However, it would be beneficial to include a brief mention of the practical implications of the findings.

Commented [H8]: Language and Clarity: The abstract is well-written and generally clear. However, there is a slight grammatical error in the phrase "This study examined univariate, bivariate..." where "examined" should be followed by "univariately" and "bivariately."

Commented [H9]: The keywords are appropriate and reflect the main elements of the study. However, it might be useful to include specific terms related to the measures of subjective well-being, anemia assessment, and hemoglobin levels to enhance discoverability.

Commented [H10]: Take a look at the citation in the published article. Fix everything immediately

Commented [H11]: Take a look at the citation in the published article. Fix everything immediately

were found to severely impact human subjective well-being (8). Overall, anemia can have a negative impact on subjective well-being, as evidenced by studies on pregnant women and elderly patients. Additionally, socioeconomic status, health status, and environmental factors such as flooding can also influence subjective well-being. Understanding these relationships can help healthcare professionals and policymakers develop interventions and strategies to improve subjective well-being in individuals affected by anemia and other related factors.

In the global context, anemia is still a burden for women of reproductive age. In low-middle-income countries, the prevalence of anemia is still high (Ali, Abbasi, et al., 2020; Ali, Khan, et al., 2020; Gautam et al., 2019; Hakizimana et al., 2019; Jammok et al., 2020; Owais et al., 2021; Sunuwar et al., 2020). In the Indonesian context, anemia is a burden for women of reproductive age. In Indonesia, there are some studies that found the factors associated with anemia among women (16). Moreover, sociocultural determinants were found as the drivers of anemia based on a previous study in Indonesia (17). According to the Basic Health Survey in 2018, the prevalence of anemia was 22.3% (18). According to the correlation between anemia and subjective well-being, there is some mediators including physical disability that might influenced (19,20). This study aimed to examine the correlation between anemia and hemoglobin status to subjective well-being among women of reproductive age in Indonesia using IFLS wave 5 data.

METHOD

This study was an analytical observation study with a cross-sectional design using IFLS 5 data (2014-2015), to analyze the relationship between anemia and subjective well-being. The study population was all women in Indonesia who were selected as respondents to the IFLS 5 study, namely women aged 15-49 years. The study sample was an IFLS 5 study respondent, who met the inclusion and exclusion criteria. Inclusion criteria: women of reproductive-aged 15-49 years and completed the Hemoglobin test. Exclusion criteria: Women whose data were not completed. The IFLS 5 survey was held from the end of 2014 until the beginning of 2015

using the same respondents as IFLS 4, namely 16,204 households, 50,148 individuals, and 2,662 individuals who died since IFLS 4 (21). From the IFLS 5 data, there were 18,825 female respondents who answered questionnaires. Then, from this data, it was re-selected based on inclusion and exclusion criteria. There were 12,818 study samples that were obtained according to inclusion and exclusion criteria. The dependent variable in this study is subjective well-being (*satisfied/somewhat satisfied/not satisfied*). The main independent variable is anemia and hemoglobin level. There are some other independent variables including age, marital status, pregnancy, menstruation, breastfeeding, SES, family life satisfaction, standard of life, and food consumption.

The analysis is divided into 3 parts, namely, univariate, bivariate, and multivariate analysis. Univariate analysis can be presented in the form of frequency distribution, which in this study describes the characteristics of anemia and subjective well-being among women of reproductive age. Bivariate analysis in this study was performed on two tests including Chi-Square for categorical independent variables and ANOVA for continuous independent variables. A 95% Confidence interval was used as cut off for significant levels. Multivariate analysis was done using multinomial logistic regression. Subjective well-being in this study was categorized into satisfied/somewhat/not satisfied, so in the multivariate analysis, the baseline or reference group is somewhat. It is because the authors want to explore the factors associated with satisfied and not-satisfied well-being. All the tests have been done using STATA version 17. The procedures in the IFLS were previously tested and approved by Institutional Review Boards (IRBs) in the United States (RAND Corporation) since IFLS 1. All data processed in this study came from IFLS 5 data which was conducted by Survey Meter and RAND Corporation. The original survey IFLS 5 has been approved by IRBs (Institutional Review Boards) in the United States (at RAND) and in Indonesia at the University of Gadjah Mada (UGM) (22). This current study using secondary data has been approved by the Universitas Muhammadiyah Pontianak Ethical Committee with number 013/KEPK-FIKES/UMPONTIANAK/2023.

Commented [H12]: The introduction is well-structured, providing a clear overview of the research context, rationale, and objectives.

Commented [H13]: Study Design and Data Source:

The study design is clearly stated as an analytical observation study with a cross-sectional design.

The use of IFLS 5 data (2014-2015) is appropriate for a cross-sectional analysis. However, it would be beneficial to provide a brief rationale for choosing this dataset and how it aligns with the study's objectives.

Study Population and Sample Selection:

The study population is well-defined as all women in Indonesia aged 15-49 years who were respondents in the IFLS 5 study.

Inclusion and exclusion criteria are clearly defined, specifying that the sample includes women of reproductive age (15-49 years) who completed the Hemoglobin test and excludes those with incomplete data.

The process of sample selection from the IFLS 5 data is explained clearly, indicating a final sample size of 12,818 that met the inclusion and exclusion criteria.

Variables:

The dependent variable, subjective well-being, is appropriately categorized into satisfied, somewhat satisfied, and not satisfied.

The main independent variable is anemia and hemoglobin level. Additionally, other relevant independent variables are listed, including age, marital status, pregnancy, menstruation, breastfeeding, SES, family life satisfaction, standard of life, and food consumption.

Data Analysis:

The analysis plan is well-structured into univariate, bivariate, and multivariate analysis.

The explanation of univariate analysis, presenting frequency distribution to describe characteristics, is clear.

Bivariate analysis includes the use of Chi-Square for categorical independent variables and ANOVA for continuous independent variables. The choice of statistical tests is appropriate for the types of variables being analyzed. The multinomial logistic regression for multivariate analysis is justified, considering the categorical nature of the dependent variable. The choice to categorize subjective well-being into three levels and use "somewhat" as the reference group is explained.

The use of a 95% confidence interval as the cutoff for significant levels is appropriate.

The software used for analysis (STATA version 17) is mentioned.

Ethical Considerations:

The study provides clear information on ethical approval, stating that the study using secondary data has been approved by the Universitas Muhammadiyah Pontianak Ethical Committee.

Review and Approval of IFLS Procedures:

RESULTS

Table 1 below describes the general characteristics of the samples. The data on age and Hemoglobin level are not presented in the table. Hb level in this study has a minimum 4 g/dL, maximum 18.8 g/dL and mean 14.5 g/dL. About the age, minimum age is 15, maximum is 49, and mean 31 years old. Among all respondents in this study, around half of them reported satisfied according to their subjective well-being (47%). About the anemia level, more than one-fourth of them were anemia (32%). More than three fourth of them were married (77%), not pregnant (95%), not in menstruation (86%), not in breastfeeding (86%), poor SES (67%), adequate family life satisfaction (59%), adequate standard of life (54%), and adequate food consumption (55%).

Table 1. General characteristics of respondents

Variables (n = 12,818)	Frequency	Percentage (%)
Subjective wellbeing		
Satisfied	6,023	46.99
Somewhat satisfied	5,369	41.89
Not satisfied	1,426	11.12
Anemia		
No	8,754	68.29
Yes	4,064	31.71
Marital status		
Married	9,803	76.48
Not married	3,015	23.52
Pregnant status		
No	12,188	95.09
Yes	630	4.91
Menstruation status		
No	10,976	85.63
Yes	1,842	14.37
Breastfeeding status		
No	11,014	85.93
Yes	1,804	14.07
Socioeconomic status		
Rich	4,205	32.81
Poor	8,613	67.19
Family life satisfaction		
Less adequate	2,033	15.86
Adequate	7,597	59.27
More than adequate	3,188	24.87
Standard of life		
Less adequate	2,228	17.38
Adequate	6,876	53.64
More than adequate	3,714	28.97
Food consumption		

Less adequate	1,392	10.86
Adequate	7,003	54.63
More than adequate	4,423	34.51

The results of bivariate using Chi-Square are reported in Table 2 below. In this table, there are some variables that have a correlation with subjective well-being, including age, pregnancy, SES, family life satisfaction, standard of life, and food consumption. However, the variables of anemia, Hb level, marital status, menstruation, and breastfeeding.

Table 2. Bivariate result between each independent variable and subjective wellbeing

Variables	Subjective wellbeing			Total
	Satisfied	Somewhat	No	
Anemia				
No	4,126	3,658	970	8,754
Yes	1,897	1,711	456	4,064
Age***				
Prob > F 0.0000				
Hb level				
Prob > F 0.7894				
Marital status				
Married	4,631	1,267	356	3,015
Not married	1,392	4,102	1,070	9,803
Pregnant*				
No	5,695	5,132	1,361	12,188
Yes	328	237	65	630
Menstruation				
No	5,160	4,589	1,227	10,976
Yes	863	780	199	1,842
Breastfeeding				
No	5,150	4,626	1,238	11,014
Yes	873	743	188	1,804
SES***				
Rich	2,534	1,440	231	4,205
Poor	3,489	3,929	1,195	8,613
Family life satisfaction***				
Less adequate	560	795	678	2,033
Adequate	3,323	3,642	632	7,597
More than adequate	2,140	932	116	3,188
Standard of life***				
Less adequate	620	903	705	2,228
Adequate	2,968	3,327	581	6,876
More than adequate	2,435	1,139	140	3,714
Food consumption**				
*	439	530	423	1,392
Less adequate	2,884	3,369	750	7,003
Adequate	2,700	1,470	253	4,423
More than adequate				

*p-value <0.05, **p-value <0.01, and ***p-value <0.001

Table 3 below describes the multivariate analysis using multinomial logistic

Commented [H14]: The table provides a clear overview of the general characteristics of the study sample, presenting frequencies and percentages. It's informative to have the range and mean values for age and hemoglobin level, but it would be more comprehensive to include these in the table for a complete description of the sample.

Commented [H15]: The presentation of bivariate analysis using Chi-Square is clear, and the variables that have a correlation with subjective well-being are appropriately identified. The use of asterisks to denote statistical significance levels is helpful for quick interpretation. However, it would be beneficial to include the actual p-values in the table for transparency.

regression. This variable included two: satisfied subjective well-being and not satisfied subjective well-being. There are some variables found to have a correlation with those reported satisfied subjective well-being including those who are married, pregnant, poor, more than adequate family life satisfaction, more than adequate standard of life. However, the variables of anemia, Hb level, age, menstruation, breastfeeding, and food consumption did not have any correlation with satisfied subjective well-being. In detail, married women were 1.21 times more likely to be satisfied according to their well-being compared to single ones. Pregnant women were 1.21 times more likely to have satisfied well-being compared to non-pregnant women. Compared to rich ones, poor ones had a 37% probability of having satisfied well-being. According to those who have more than adequate family life satisfaction, an adequate standard of life, and more than adequate standard of life, they were 1.77 times, 1.19 times, and 1.74 times more likely to have satisfied well-being compared to those who have less adequate.

According to those reported not satisfied subjective well-being, it was revealed that some variables have correlation including married, poor, adequate family life satisfaction, more than adequate family life satisfaction, adequate and more than the adequate standard of life, adequate and more than adequate food consumption. In detail, married ones have a 26% probability to report not satisfied well-being compared to those not married. Poor women are 1.29 times more likely to have not-satisfied well-being compared to rich ones. Those who have adequate and more than adequate family life satisfaction, adequate and more than adequate standard of life, and adequate and more than adequate food consumption have the probability to have not-satisfied well-being 61%, 66%, 54%, 64%, 34%, and 25%, respectively.

Table 3. The multivariate results of the correlation between anemia and other covariates with subjective wellbeing

Subjective well-being: satisfied

Variable	RRR	95% CI (Lower – upper)
Anemia (ref: No)		
Yes	0.99	0.88 – 1.14
Age	0.99	0.99 – 1.00
Hb level	1.02	0.98 – 1.06
Marital status (ref: No)		
Married	1.21**	1.08 – 1.35
Pregnant (ref: No)		
Yes	1.21*	1.00 – 1.46
Menstruation (ref: No)		
Yes	0.96	0.86 – 1.07
Breastfeeding (ref: No)		
Yes	1.04	0.93 – 1.17
SES (ref: Rich)		
Poor	0.63***	0.58 – 0.69
Family life satisfaction (Ref: Less adequate)		
Adequate	1.08	0.93 – 1.24
More than adequate	1.77***	1.50 – 2.09
Standard of life (ref: Less adequate)		
Adequate	1.19*	1.03 – 1.36
More than adequate	1.74***	1.48 – 2.04
Food consumption (ref: Less adequate)		
Adequate	0.88	0.76 – 1.03
More than adequate	1.13	0.95 – 1.34

*p-value <0.05, **p-value <0.01, and ***p-value <0.001

Subjective well-being: not satisfied

Variable	RRR	95% CI (Lower – upper)
Anemia (ref: No)		
Yes	1.04	0.84 – 1.28
Age	1.01	1.00 – 1.02
Hb level	1.02	0.98 – 1.06
Marital status (ref: No)		
Married	0.74**	0.63 – 0.88
Pregnant (ref: No)		
Yes	1.26	0.92 – 1.72
Menstruation (ref: No)		
Yes	1.02	0.85 – 1.22
Breastfeeding (ref: No)		
Yes	1.04	0.87 – 1.27
SES (ref: Rich)		
Poor	1.29**	1.10 – 1.53
Family life satisfaction (Ref: Less adequate)		
Adequate	0.39***	0.33 – 0.47
More than adequate	0.34***	0.26 – 0.44
Standard of life (ref: Less adequate)		
Adequate	0.46***	0.39 – 0.55
More than adequate	0.36***	0.28 – 0.47
Food consumption (ref: Less adequate)		
Adequate	0.66***	0.55 – 0.78
More than adequate	0.75*	0.60 – 0.94

*p-value <0.05, **p-value <0.01, and ***p-value <0.001

DISCUSSION

According to the findings in this study, there is no correlation between anemia and subjective well-being. However, other

Commented [H16]: The multinomial logistic regression results are well-organized, with clear indication of variables associated with satisfied and not satisfied subjective well-being. The use of Relative Risk Ratios (RRR) and 95% confidence intervals adds statistical rigor to the findings. Including asterisks for significance levels is helpful, but providing actual p-values would enhance transparency.

covariates have a significant correlation to either satisfied well-being or not satisfied well-being. Apart from anemia as the main predictor, there are other studies that found covariates have more tendency to be correlated with subjective well-being.

The opposite result found there is a significant positive relationship between subjective well-being and marital satisfaction (23). Studies have shown that higher levels of subjective well-being are associated with higher levels of marital satisfaction among married women. This suggests that subjective well-being can have a positive impact on the quality of marital relationships. Furthermore, subjective well-being is influenced by various factors, including economic status (24). A meta-analysis found that individuals in developing countries with higher economic status tend to have higher levels of subjective well-being. This suggests that economic factors play a role in shaping an individual's subjective well-being. In summary, anemia can have a negative impact on subjective well-being, as evidenced by the study on pregnant women (2). Subjective well-being is a multidimensional construct that encompasses both hedonic and evaluative well-being (5). It is influenced by various factors, including economic status (24). Additionally, subjective well-being is positively related to marital satisfaction among married women (23). Understanding the relationship between anemia and subjective well-being can help inform interventions and support for individuals with anemia to improve their overall well-being. The study in Indonesia found sociocultural variables had more influence on anemia (16).

Several studies about subjective well-being have been done before. The result of this study is supported by the study about food insecurity and subjective well-being in more-developed and less-developed countries (25). One study found that job uncertainty on fertility intentions was channeled by subjective well-being (26,27). In terms of the child, another study found that infertility was correlated with women's well-being (28). Parenthood on subjective well-being was also discussed in the study in Hungary (29). Another study about subjective well-being found that disaster is highly correlated with satisfied well-being (7,8). Among the students, there is a role and

interaction of social support, resilience, and subjective well-being (30).

Even though anemia was not significantly associated with subjective well-being, other core variables were found associated with subjective well-being. Health behavior was found to correlate with subjective well-being by a longitudinal study (31). Among the elderly, iron deficiency, fatigue, and muscle strength have correlated with daily life activity that also impacts satisfied well-being (32).

CONCLUSION

Regarding to results in this study, there is no correlation between anemia and hemoglobin level and subjective well-being. However, there are some other covariates that have a correlation to satisfied and not-satisfied well-being including marital status, pregnancy, SES, family life satisfaction, the standard of life, and food consumption. It is concluded that subjective well-being is associated with not only health aspects but also social and economic. Intervention in the level of community is needed to improve the quality of life to achieve satisfied well-being.

Acknowledgments: We appreciate to RAND Corporation and the team who provided the data IFLS available online on the website <https://www.rand.org/well-being/social-and-behavioral-policy/data/FLS/IFLS/download.html> after registering and receiving approval.

Conflicts of Interest: All authors declared there is no conflict of interest in this study.

REFERENCE

1. Das K V, Jones-Harrell C, Fan Y, Ramaswami A, Orlove B, Botchwey N. Understanding subjective well-being: perspectives from psychology and public health. *Public Health Rev* [Internet]. 2020;41(1):25. Available from: <https://doi.org/10.1186/s40985-020-00142-5>
2. Muhammad A, Saputri GZ, Candradewi SF,

Commented [H17]: Take a look at the citation in the published article. Fix everything immediately

Commented [H18]: Take a look at the citation in the published article. Fix everything immediately

Commented [H19]: Suggestions for Improvement:

Include the range and mean values for age and hemoglobin level in Table 1.
Provide actual p-values in Tables 2 and 3 for transparency. Clarify if there are specific reasons for not presenting age and hemoglobin level in Table 1.
Consider discussing the limitations of the study, such as any potential biases or challenges in the data, to enhance the transparency of the research process.

Commented [H20]: Take a look at the citation in the published article. Fix everything immediately

Commented [H21]: In conclusion, the section effectively communicates the study's main findings and their implications. However, a bit more detail on practical recommendations and societal implications could further enhance the conclusion.

- Akrom AH. Correlation Between Hemoglobin Levels and Quality of Life in Pregnant Women in Yogyakarta. *KnE Medicine*. 2022;190–7.
3. Patel R, Marbaniang SP, Srivastava S, Kumar P, Chauhan S, Simon DJ. Gender differential in low psychological health and low subjective well-being among older adults in India: With special focus on childless older adults. *PLoS One*. 2021;16(3):e0247943.
 4. Peverill M, Dirks MA, Narvaia T, Herts KL, Comer JS, McLaughlin KA. Socioeconomic status and child psychopathology in the United States: A meta-analysis of population-based studies. *Clin Psychol Rev [Internet]*. 2021;83:101933. Available from: <https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0272735820301215>
 5. Ray TK. Work related well-being is associated with individual subjective well-being. *Ind Health*. 2021;60(3):242–52.
 6. Heshmati S, Kibrisioglu Uysal N, Kim SH, Oravec Z, Donaldson SI. Momentary PERMA: An Adapted Measurement Tool for Studying Well-Being in Daily Life. *J Happiness Stud [Internet]*. 2023; Available from: <https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-023-00684-w>
 7. Mkrtrchyan GM, Blam IYu, Kovalev SYu, Tselodub YuO. Impact of Climate Change on the Subjective Well-Being of Households in Russia. *Regional Research of Russia [Internet]*. 2018;8(3):281–8. Available from: <https://doi.org/10.1134/S207997051803005X>
 8. Hudson P, Botzen WJW, Poussin J, Aerts JCJH. Impacts of Flooding and Flood Preparedness on Subjective Well-Being: A Monetisation of the Tangible and Intangible Impacts. *J Happiness Stud [Internet]*. 2019;20(2):665–82. Available from: <https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-017-9916-4>
 9. Owais A, Merritt C, Lee C, Bhutta ZA. Anemia among women of reproductive age: an overview of global burden, trends, determinants, and drivers of progress in low- and middle-income countries. *Nutrients*. 2021;13(8):2745.
 10. Sunuwar DR, Singh DR, Chaudhary NK, Pradhan PMS, Rai P, Tiwari K. Prevalence and factors associated with anemia among women of reproductive age in seven South and Southeast Asian countries: Evidence from nationally representative surveys. *PLoS One*. 2020;15(8):e0236449.
 11. Ali SA, Abbasi Z, Shahid B, Moin G, Hambidge KM, Krebs NF, et al. Prevalence and determinants of anemia among women of reproductive age in Thatta Pakistan: Findings from a cross-sectional study. *PLoS One*. 2020;15(9):e0239320.
 12. Gautam S, Min H, Kim H, Jeong HS. Determining factors for the prevalence of anemia in women of reproductive age in Nepal: Evidence from recent national survey data. *PLoS One*. 2019;14(6):e0218288.
 13. Hakizimana D, Nisingizwe MP, Logan J, Wong R. Identifying risk factors of anemia among women of reproductive age in Rwanda—a cross-sectional study using secondary data from the Rwanda demographic and health survey 2014/2015. *BMC Public Health*. 2019;19(1):1–11.
 14. Ali SA, Khan US, Feroz AS. Prevalence and determinants of anemia among women of reproductive age in developing countries. *Journal of the College of Physicians and Surgeons--Pakistan : JCPSP*. 2020;30(2):177–86.
 15. Jannok J, Sanchaisuriya K, Sanchaisuriya P, Fucharoen G, Fucharoen S, Ahmed F. Factors associated with anaemia and iron deficiency among women of reproductive age in Northeast Thailand: a cross-sectional study. *BMC Public Health [Internet]*. 2020;20(1):102. Available from: <https://doi.org/10.1186/s12889-020-8248-1>
 16. Masan L, Rudi A, Hariyanti Y, Akbar H, Maretalinia M, Abbani AY. The determinants of anemia severity and BMI level among anemic women of reproductive age in Indonesia. *Journal of Health Epidemiology and Communicable Diseases*.

- 2021;7(1):26–39.
17. Maretalinia M, Thaweesit S, Jampaklay A. The Sociocultural Determinants of Anemia Among Women in Reproductive Age in Eastern Indonesia: Analysis of Indonesia Family Life Survey East (IFLS East) 2012. In: The 10th International Graduate Students Conference on Population and Public Health Sciences (IGSCPP). Bangkok: Chulalongkorn University; 2019. p. 168–78.
 18. Ministry of Health Indonesia. Report of National Basic Health Research 2018 [Internet]. 2018. Available from: <http://www.depkes.go.id/resources/download/info-terkini/hasil-risikesdas-2018.pdf>
 19. Satria A, Yeni Y, Akbar H, Kaseger H, Suwarni L, Abbani AY, et al. Relationship between depression and physical disability by gender among elderly in Indonesia. *Universa Medicina* [Internet]. 2022 May 5;41(2):104–13. Available from: <https://univmed.org/ejournal/index.php/medicina/article/view/1277>
 20. Nainggolan O, Hapsari D, Titaly CR, Indrawati L, Dharmayanti I, Kristanto AY. The relationship of body mass index and mid-upper arm circumference with anemia in non-pregnant women aged 19–49 years in Indonesia: Analysis of 2018 Basic Health Research data. *PLoS One*. 2022;17(3):e0264685.
 21. Strauss J, Witoelar F, Sikoki B. The fifth wave of the Indonesia family life survey: overview and field report. Vol. 1. Rand Santa Monica, CA, USA; 2016.
 22. Surveyometer. Indonesia Family Life Survey 5 and IFLS East [Internet]. 2015 [cited 2023 Oct 17]. Available from: <https://www.rand.org/well-being/social-and-behavioral-policy/data/FLS/IFLS/download.html>
 23. Eid R. Forgiveness as a moderator variable in the relationship between subjective well-being and marital satisfaction among married women. *المعاصرة النفسية الدراسات مجلة* سويف بني جامعة. 2019;1(2):139–58.
 24. Ngamaba KH, Armitage C, Panagioti M, Hodkinson A. How closely related are financial satisfaction and subjective well-being? Systematic review and meta-analysis. *J Behav Exp Econ* [Internet]. 2020;85:101522. Available from: <https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2214804319300898>
 25. Frongillo EA, Nguyen HT, Smith MD, Coleman-Jensen A. Food insecurity is more strongly associated with poor subjective well-being in more-developed countries than in less-developed countries. *J Nutr*. 2019;149(2):330–5.
 26. Vignoli D, Mencarini L, Alderotti G. Is the effect of job uncertainty on fertility intentions channeled by subjective well-being? *Adv Life Course Res*. 2020;46:100343.
 27. Wang L, Wang H, Shao S, Jia G, Xiang J. Job burnout on subjective well-being among Chinese female doctors: the moderating role of perceived social support. *Front Psychol*. 2020;11:435.
 28. Shreffler KM, Greil AL, Tiemeyer SM, McQuillan J. Is infertility resolution associated with a change in women's well-being? *Human Reproduction*. 2020;35(3):605–16.
 29. Radó MK. Tracking the effects of parenthood on subjective well-being: Evidence from Hungary. *J Happiness Stud*. 2020;21(6):2069–94.
 30. Yıldırım M, Tanrıverdi FÇ. Social support, resilience and subjective well-being in college students. *Journal of Positive School Psychology*. 2021;5(2):127–35.
 31. Stenlund S, Junttila N, Koivumaa-Honkanen H, Sillanmäki L, Stenlund D, Suominen S, et al. Longitudinal stability and interrelations between health behavior and subjective well-being in a follow-up of nine years. *PLoS One*. 2021;16(10):e0259280.
 32. Neidlein S, Wirth R, Pourhassan M. Iron deficiency, fatigue and muscle strength and function in older hospitalized patients. *Eur J Clin Nutr* [Internet]. 2021;75(3):456–63. Available from:

<https://doi.org/10.1038/s41430-020-00742-z>

AFTER SUBMIT

PLEASE CONTACT US THROUGH EMAIL OR WA IF YOU FIND ANY PROBLEMS IN THE PROCESS OF SENDING ARTICLES

**Email: poltekita@gmail.com
WA: 085253587076 (Bohari)**